
Question # Section 

Number

Paragraph 

Number

Page 

Number

Text of passage being Questioned Question DMMA Answer

1 I. 2 5 DMMA is implementing EVV for both of these sets of services with the 2020 

timeframe

Would DMMA like to have the EVV solution live on or by 1/1/2020? If not what is an acceptable 

date when DMMA would like the EVV solution live?

DMMA wants the EVV solution to be live on 1/1/2020.

2 4 4 .10 13 “The contractor project manager and other key staff like the Business Analyst(s) 

will be required to be on site in New Castle, Delaware, during the entire project 

phase.”

Will DHSS consider the PM and BA being on site as needed? Because the EVV solution being 

implemented is already a developed product, the vendor finds it more efficient and cost effective 

for the state to have its employee onsite on an as needed basis. In addition, the vendor can easily 

staff these key positions with current employees that are experienced subject matter experts 

without the need to relocate staff or hire staff that are not proven with the vendor.

The PM and BA are to be on site as described in the RFP

3 4 4.4.8 23 DHSS will permit project work to be done offsite, within the United States and its 

territories and Canada.”

What is the definition of “offsite"? Does offsite work imply work that is carried out by subcontractor 

staff? 

Offsite refers to work performed remotely. The same RFP requirements apply to any subcontractors used.

4 4 4. 10 36 The Contractor’s EVV System must allow for the uploading of paper timesheets 

and other documents and must accept all recognized electronic document 

formats

Can the state provide more clarity and context around how it intends to use paper timesheets and 

other electronic documents within the EVV system?

DMMA anticipates the use of paper time sheets in very limited circumstances (e.g., due to loss of 

connectivity) and will issue operational guidance to the provider community as part of implementation.

5 4 4. 10 37 The Contractor shall provide a data collection device (device) used to securely 

collect an independent verification of each service subject to EVV. The device 

provided must be based on member or authorized representative preference for 

each member receiving services subject to EVV consistent with the availability of 

broadband connectivity in the area where the member resides.”

Will DHSS consider a bring your own device model? In other words, caretakers utilize their own 

smartphones or tablets to capture the visit data. This is a proven model, in this day and age, as 

nearly every caregiver we’ve surveyed has a personal smartphone or tablet Requiring the vendor 

to purchase, install and maintain data capturing devices will likely triple the cost of this 

procurement. An EVV report completed by Minnesota Department of Human Services surveyed 

several states currently using EVV. Texas is referenced in the report on page 14 regarding the 

use of fixed devices, “…Most verification is done using a home landline. If that is not feasible, a 

small alternative device is installed in the service recipient’s home. These devices have been 

problematic, and, currently, at least 3,000 devices require repair each week.

The "bring your own device" model might not be appropriate for all providers and members. DMMA is not 

prescribing the type or model of devices to be used. DMMA welcomes proposals from bidders that could 

include an array of options that meet the requirements of the RFP. This could include a "bring your own 

device" model. DMMA expects a comprehensive approach that takes into consideration the data collection 

needs and preferences of members.

6 4 4. 10 42 The Contractor’s EVV data aggregation component must accept individual claim 

and/or batch inquiries from the claims systems based on member name, billing 

provider, name, date and time of service delivery

Would you please clarify what is meant by, “must accept individual claim and/or batch inquiries 

from claims systems” as well as the method(s) of the inquiry?”

In its response the bidder must describe its systems capabilities for receiving claims data for both an 

individual claim or multiple claims (through a batch process). 

7  I. 1 1 The proposed schedule of events subject to the RFP is outlined below: 

 Public Notice    Date:  May 14, 2019 

Deadline for Questions  Date: June 4, 2019 

Response to Questions Posted by: Date: June 18, 2019 

Deadline for Receipt of Proposals Date: July 10, 2019 at 11:00 AM (Local Time) 

Estimated Notification of Award Date: July 31, 2019 

We have reviewed the RFP, Appendix B and supporting documents. To provide a full and 

complete response to meet all required documentation, we respectfully ask for an extension to 

the due date for receipt of proposals of at least 4 weeks.

The deadline for bidders to submit their RFP proposals has been extended from July 10, 2019 to July 24, 

2019.

8 IV. B. 4 8 Vendor(s) may submit portions of a proposal considered to be confidential 

business information in a separate, sealed envelope labeled “Confidential 

Business Information” and include the specific RFP number.  The envelope must 

contain a letter from the Vendor’s legal counsel describing the documents in the 

envelope, representing in good faith that the information in each document is not 

“public record” as defined by 29 Del. C. § 10002, and briefly stating the reasons 

that each document meets the said definitions.

Please clarify the process to identify and document confidential and proprietary information. If we 

identify and designate portions of our response as confidential, are we allowed to remove/redact 

content that will be included in the separate, sealed envelope? Since true redaction is not a 

function of MS Word, but is only available for PDF files, is it acceptable to completely remove the 

confidential content from our Word versions to protect the content once it is made public following 

award?

For CD's or DVD's any required confidential financial or audit information relating to the company and not 

specifically to the proposal may be copied separately to one set of up to three (3) disks (Each labeled 

“Corporate Confidential Information”).

For hard copies Vendor(s) may submit portions of a proposal considered to be confidential business 

information in a separate, sealed envelope labeled “Confidential Business Information” and include the 

specific RFP number.  The envelope must contain a letter from the Vendor’s legal counsel describing the 

documents in the envelope, representing in good faith that the information in each document is not “public 

record” as defined by 29 Del. C. § 10002, and briefly stating the reasons that each document meets the said 

definitions. For additional information see Section IV, B. 2 of the Professional Services RFP. 

9 6 6.1 59 App B, 6.1 p. 59 indicates that Contractors are no longer required to make hard 

copies.

Please clarify whether any hard copy material is required for submission.  If required, please 

confirm the number of original documents and copies to be submitted as printed version (in 

binders).

The following copies are required for submission: 1 original and  6 paper copies and 8 CDs. 

10 6 6.1 59 Some documents requiring original signatures must be provided in both 

hardcopy and PDF formats. These documents include the Transmittal Letter, 

Certification and Statement of Compliance, Mandatory Submission 

Requirements Checklist and the Contractor Contact Information form.

Please confirm/clarify whether original ink (“wet”) signatures are still required.  If so, for which 

signatures (which forms) and how many original signatures?

Bidders must submit one original paper copy of their response with all required forms that include original 

signatures. 

11 IV. B. 5 5 Each required copy must contain the following sections: 

1. Technical Proposal 2. Business Proposal/Budget – Budget must not be 

included in or attached to the Technical Proposal.

Should the hard copy Business Proposal/Budget be a separate binder or only separated from the 

Technical Proposal by tab/section in a single binder?

The Business Proposal can be included in the same binder as the Technical Proposal but must be clearly 

separated and identified (e.g., via a separate tab/section)

12 6 6.1 59 Two (2) original copies (Each Labeled as “Original”) and six (6) copies (Each 

labeled as “Copy”). 

We are asked to identify “original” and “copy” versions of the electronic CDs.  Please clarify the 

difference between the “original” and “copy” versions of the required CDs so that we properly 

meet your submission requirements.

The official copy of the proposal will be labeled “original”. This is the official copy and will stay with the 

project lead and is retained forever.  The other CDs need to be labeled copy and are distributed to those 

that review the RFP response. The content of the CDs should be identical.
13 5 5.2.2 58 EVV Experience-10 points Staffing-5 points Reporting-10 points Interfaces-10 

points Data Collection-10 points EVV Equipment-10 points System Capabilities-

10 points Data Aggregator-10 points Communications Plan-5 points Training 

Plan-5 points Pricing-Evaluation- 20 point

Please confirm Technical Proposal Scoring totals.  Expected a total score of 100, but current 

values total 105 points. Staffing – 5 points is only included in App B

Staffing - 5 points will be removed from the RFP. The total score is 100 points. Appendix B will be updated 

to reflect this change. 

.

14 5 5.2.3 58 The business proposal will be reviewed based on the costs submitted as part of 

the cost worksheet and on the documented stability and resources of the 

Contractor. Strong consideration will be given to how well the costs in the 

Project Cost Forms compare to the level of effort for this and other proposals 

along with the accuracy of the submitted figures

Is there any unique scoring/weighting for the Business Proposal?  Section 5.1 speaks to both 

technical and business scores, but no scoring for the Business Proposal is noted in 5.2.2 nor 

5.2.3. Please provide the weighting and total point breakdown for Technical and Business. 

Section 5.2.2 includes the combined technical and business scoring criteria. 

15 4 4.5 26 Paragraph states a mandatory requirement “The Contractor must provide a 

separate reporting server…”

 For a COTS/SaaS solution hosted by the vendor, can this requirement be satisfied by an existing 

dual site active architecture and the response time SLAs are met?

No, there should be a separate reporting server.  Reporting via queries can affect server response time if 

they are not separated.

16 4 4.4.3.6.1 19 Section numbering restarts – 4.4.3.6.2 is followed by 4.4.3.6.1  In other words two different sections are numbered 4.4.3.6.1 and 4.4.3.6.2.Can the State please 

confirm if they will re-issue a corrected RFP?

There is an error in numbering. The State will amend this Section of Appendix B. to correct. 

17 I. 2 1 Estimated Notification of Award Date: July 31, 201 The RFP states the estimated notification of award date is 7/31/19. Award date plus a reasonable 

negotiation time plus CMS review and approval of the contract can take several months. Please 

modify the RFP to state that the project start date will take place following contract negotiation 

and CMS approval.

Estimated Date of Award has been changed to August, 15 2019, with contract signature occurring at a later 

date pending CMS approval.

18 II. 1 2  DMMA is implementing EVV for home health services and personal care 

services by January 2020. 

It appears that DHSS is asking for an aggressive implementation plan of 5-6 months to Go Live 

with both home health services and personal care services by January 2020. Please modify the 

RFP to indicate that the EVV solution should go live with both home health services and personal 

care services within 6 months of the project start date.

DMMA wants the EVV solution to be live on 1/1/2020.

19 II.B. 3 11 From the RFP: 18. State’s Right to Award Multiple Source Contracting Pursuant 

to 29 Del. C. § 6986, the State of Delaware may award a contract for a particular 

professional service to two or more vendors if the agency head makes a 

determination that such an award is in the best interest of the State of Delaware.

If the state does award to multiple vendors, how will the service recipient population be split 

between the vendors?  For example, if two vendors are awarded, will each get 50%?  And if so, 

how will the state determine how that split is done? Geographically? In figuring our pricing, is 

there a monthly minimum allowed.

DMMA reserves the right to award contracts to multiple vendors. Specifications on how recipients will be 

divided will be determined during contract negotiations. 

20 II.C. 1 13 RFP States 1. Proposal Evaluation Team - The Proposal Evaluation Team shall 

be comprised of representatives of the State.

Will the State MMIS vendor be part of the evaluation team?• Will the State MMIS vendor have 

input on the RFP award decision?

The State MMIS vendor will not be part of the evaluation team, and will not have input on award decision. 

21 General N/A N/A Will the State MMIS vendor have input on the implementation process and EVV system design The selected vendor will be expected to work with the MMIS vendor, as well as MCOs, to implement the 

claim system inquiry process to the data aggregation component. 

22 1 1.1 5 Appendix B states DMMA plans to implement an Open Contractor model with 

DMMA contracting with one EVV Contractor and allowing providers and 

managed care organizations (MCOs) with existing EVV Systems to continue to 

use those systems.

Can the state confirm they intend to award to one and only one vendor based on this statement?  

Please list the managed care organizations (MCOs) currently in operations in DE and the EVV 

systems they currently use. For each MCO, please list the population for that MCO for in-home 

care service that will be tracked by the EVV system

DMMA reserves the right to award contracts to multiple vendors. DMMA currently contracts with two 

Medicaid MCOs AmeriHealth Caritas and Highmark Health Options. Relevant EVV data can be found on the 

DMMA website at: https://dhss.delaware.gov/dhss/dmma/info_stats.html

23 1 1.1 6 Appendix B states: As of August 2018, over 236,000 members were enrolled in 

Delaware’s Medicaid program.

Of the Medicaid enrolled members, what percentage will have personal care or home health 

services that will be verified by the EVV vendor? Stated another way, how many members (service 

recipients) will have visits populated in the EVV system (either through data collection or data 

aggregation). Please provide the total and the subtotal by MCO, and provide a grand total for all.

State Fiscal Year 2018 ( 7/1/2017-6/30/2018) Diamond State Health Plan - Member Count 2,270; Diamond 

State Health Plan Plus - Member Count 4,220 and Fee for Service - Member count 270.  Toal member count 

6,.670  Aggregate Total 6,424.  Additional EVV data can be found on the DMMA website at: 

https://dhss.delaware.gov/dhss/dmma/info_stats.html

24 General N/A N/A How many provider agencies are expected to provide in home care services in DE that will be 

verified by the EVV vendor?

State Fiscal Year 2018 ( 7/1/2017-6/30/2018) 274 Providers, additional EVV data can be found on the DMMA 

website at:   

https://dhss.delaware.gov/dhss/dmma/info_stats.html
25 General N/A N/A How many individual service providers (workers, personal attendants, direct support workers, etc.) 

that will bill through the EVV System to their payer in DE?

Data on self-directed members is included but information on self-directed members and providers cannot 

be discretely identified. Additional EVV data can be found on the DMMA website at: 

https://dhss.delaware.gov/dhss/dmma/info_stats.html
26 General N/A N/A What percentage of visits can the awarded vendor anticipate will originate through the data 

collection method vs. the data aggregation path?

DMMA cannot anticipate what percentage of visits will originate through the data collection method versus 

the data aggregation path.

27 General N/A N/A Using historical data, can the state please provide an anticipated number of visits that will be 

verified through EVV annually?

State Fiscal Year 2018 ( 7/1/2017-6/30/2018) 191,665.  Additional EVV data can be found on the DMMA 

website at:   

https://dhss.delaware.gov/dhss/dmma/info_stats.html
27 4 4.1 37 Appendix B states The device must capture point-in-time location data. The 

Contractor’s device may use GPS technology solely for the purpose of 

accurately identifying the location of the user each time the data is entered into 

the device (i.e., at the beginning and the end of each shift).

Can the state confirm that the device must be GPS enabled and must use GPS to determine 

location?  Or can a fixed device be used that is not GPS enabled? Please amend Appendix B and 

the RFP to add the requirement to include “geo-fencing” as GPS is not positive in terms of 

validating location, whereas geo-fencing does.

The bidders system must capture point-in-time location data. DMMA expects the bidder to describe how their 

system accomplishes this. If the bidder proposes to use GPS as part of its solution, the GPS technology 

must comply with the requirements described in this section (see section 4.10 EVV Equipment)

28  Exhibits E1 and E3 82-85 Please provide Excel versions of the two cost schedules noted below.  Please provide worksheet 

versions with automated formulas to verify that all costs, holdbacks, amounts and totals are 

accurate.E1. Project Costs by Deliverables & Milestones

E3. M&O Support Cost Schedule

While bidders can modify any templates to prepare their cost schedules, bidders must submit their cost 

schedule in the template provided in the RFP. DMMA will not change the template.

Question and Answer for HSS 19-041



29 Exhibits E3 85 This section states that “Year 1 is defined as the first 12 months after the 

conclusion of the warranty timeframe.”

If the EVV solution is accepted by DHSS (Phase 5 Deliverable) in January 2020, the 1-year 

warranty period then goes until January 2021 (Phase 6 and release of the holdbacks).With this 

example, please verify that the Year 1 schedule for M&O would then begin with February 2021 – 

and then so on for M&O years 2 thru 5 – ending with January 2026.Where in the cost schedule(s) 

should the vendor account for the maintenance and operations during the 12 months of the 

warranty period?  Please provide an updated M&O Support Cost Schedule for “Year 0” (or similar) 

to allow for maintenance and operations costs for the first 12 months following Go Live of the EVV 

system.

Bidders may add a Year 0 column to the Ongoing Support Costs table. The following language will be 

added via an amendment to Section E.3 of Appendix B. "Please provide an updated M&O Support Cost 

Schedule for “Year 0” (or similar) to allow for maintenance and operations costs for the first 12 months 

following Go Live of the EVV system."

29 4 4. 10 39 The RFP states “For members with installed devices who change their place of 

residence, the Contractor must install a device in the new place of residence 

within 48 hours of the later of the date the Contractor receives notification of the 

change in place of residence, or the date the change in residence takes place

The RFP states “For members with installed devices who change their place of residence, the 

Contractor must install a device in the new place of residence within 48 hours of the later of the 

date the Contractor receives notification of the change in place of residence, or the date the 

change in residence takes place.”     Please remove “‘or the date the change in residence takes 

place.”

The Contractor must install the new device within 48 hours of the date the change in residence takes place. 

Appendix B will be updated to reflect this.

30 V.8. 4 29  hh. IRS Pub 1075 The contractor and the contractor’s employees with access to 

or who use FTI must meet the background check requirements defined in IRS 

Publication 1075.

IRS Pub. 1075 does not apply to this contract because it does not contain data regulated by IRS 

Pub. 1075. Please remove the requirement for IRS Pub. 1075 since it does not apply to an EVV 

system.

This language will not be removed from the solicitation.  If it does not apply to this solicitation, disregard the 

language.  Vendors have the option of  submitting exceptions.  Please see Section B. 23 of the Professional 

Services RFP for details on exception process. .
31 4 4. 10 42 The RFP states “On an on-going basis, the Contractor must assess providers’ 

legacy systems for compliance with specified State requirements and assure 

that as requirements change, providers update their systems as appropriate.”

It is our understanding the Contractor will verify that a provider’s system interfaces correctly with 

the Contractor’s EVV solution. This includes when the EVV system functionality is updated or 

enhanced. It is the responsibility of the provider to ensure their system (legacy of otherwise) is in 

compliance with State requirements. Our solution supplies a wizard mapping tool for the 

providers to easily map their legacy data to the Aggregator functionality.  For web services, if any 

provider changes their back-end configuration, they can use our tools to remap or adjust web 

service calls in real-time. We cannot accept responsibility for multiple providers and their system 

changes.  Our system rejects incorrect interface data and moves to an exception process to 

correct the provider’s data issue.  Please change the paragraph on p.42 to make it the provider’s 

responsibility to maintain their interface files with the EVV vendor, whether batch or real-time.  

Please add that the contractor is not required to add exports to the legacy EVV system when it is 

not in compliance with the requirements of the contractor’s offer.

The RFP requirements remain as written.

32 2 2.2 7 Data regarding enrollment numbers for each program is available on DMMA’s 

EVV web page:  https://dhss.delaware.gov/dhss/dmma/info_stats.html

The link to the reports does not provide specific EVV program scope.   In order to assure all 

vendors use the same pricing assumptions, please provide the following information for the EVV 

program and services listed to support pricing:   • Number and name of MCOs

• Total number of Provider Agencies in EVV program

• Total EVV Members (Self Directed and Provider Agency) 

 

Additional relevant EVV data can be found on the DMMA website at:                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      

https://dhss.delaware.gov/dhss/dmma/info_stats.html.  However,  information on self-directed members and 

providers cannot be discretely identified. The FMS providers in Delaware are JEVS and Easter Seals.

33 2 2.2 8 Data regarding the number of members who self-direct their services is available 

on DMMA’s EVV web page: 

https://dhss.delaware.gov/dhss/dmma/info_stats.html

The link to the reports does not provide specific EVV scope.   In order to assure all vendors, use 

the same pricing assumptions, please provide the following information for the EVV program and 

services listed:  • Number of self-directed members/employers in EVV program (part of member 

total provided above) 

• Number of self-directed  caregivers/employees in EVV program

• Number and name of self-directed fiscal agents 

Relevant EVV data can be found on the DMMA website at:                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      

https://dhss.delaware.gov/dhss/dmma/info_stats.html. Data on self-directed members is included in table, 

but information on self-directed members and providers cannot be discretely identified. The FMS providers 

in Delaware are JEVS and Easter Seals.

34 III. 1 3 The following information shall be provided in each proposal in the order listed 

below. Failure to respond to any request for information within this proposal may 

result in rejection of the proposal at the sole discretion of the State.

Section 6.2 Proposal Contents within Appendix B, page 60, does not outline where in the 

proposal vendor responses to the required information in the above RFP document reside. Please 

confirm if vendors are to provide direct responses to Section III Required Information (including A. 

Minimum Requirements and B. General Evaluation Requirements), and if so, which section 

should they reside

Vendor must provide required documentation.  A direct response to all sections is not required.

35 IV.B.and 

Appendix A. 

(Attachment 

10) of 

Professional 

Services RFP

and

Section 6. of 

Attachment B.

2                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   

3                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              

1                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             

5                                                                                                                  

5; 45 of 

RFP 

document

and

59 of 

Attachment 

B

Pg. 5, paragraph 2. “Each proposal must be submitted with seven (7) paper 

copies and eight (8) electronic copies on CD or DVD media disk.”

And

Pg. 45, paragraph 3. “Vendors shall provide proposal packages in the following 

formats:

1.  Six (6) paper copies of the vendor proposal paperwork. One (1) paper copy 

must be an original copy, marked “ORIGINAL” on the cover, and contain original 

signatures.

2.  Eight (8) electronic copies of the vendor proposal saved to CD or DVD media 

disk.  Two (2) original copies and six (6) copies (each labeled as “copy”). A copy 

of electronic price file shall be a separate file from all other files on the electronic 

copy.”

and

Pg. 59, paragraph 1. “The proposal must be submitted in electronic copy as 

follows: Acceptable Media: CD or DVD disk.  Two (2) original copies (Each 

Labeled as “Original”) and six (6) copies (Each labeled as “Copy”). In addition, 

any required confidential financial or audit information relating to the company 

and not specifically to the proposal may be copied separately to one set of up to 

three (3) disks (Each labeled “Corporate Confidential Information”). The Vendor 

shall also provide 6 hard copies of the proposal.”

Pg. 59, paragraph 5. “Contractors are no longer required to make hard copies. 

Some documents requiring original signatures must be provided in both 

hardcopy and PDF formats. These documents include the Transmittal Letter, 

Certification and Statement of Compliance, Mandatory Submission 

Requirements Checklist and the Contractor Contact Information form.”

1) Please confirm if hard copies are required.

2) If yes, please confirm the number of originals, and copies for Technical, Cost, and Corporate 

Confidential Information.

3) Please confirm the number of CDs  - original and copies for Technical Proposal, Business 

Proposal, and Corporate Confidential Information.

   3. Eight (8) electronic copies of the bidders proposal on CD or DVD media disk are required. Two (2) 

original copies and six (6) copies (each labeled as “copy”).  A copy of electronic price file shall be a separate 

file from all other files on the electronic copy. Each disk will contain the following files at a minimum:                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        

Disk Directory.doc (Microsoft Word 2000 or higher)                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

RFP Technical Proposal.doc                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          

RFP Business Proposal.doc                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        

RFP Technical Proposal.pdf                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             

For additional details regarding CD submission see Section 6.1 of Appendix B.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        

For CD's or DVD's any required confidential financial or audit information relating to the company and not 

specifically to the proposal may be copied separately to one set of up to three (3) disks (Each labeled 

“Confidential Business  Information”)

36 6 6.2.1 61 The original of the Transmittal Letter shall be submitted in a separate, sealed 

envelope inside the package containing proposal disks. PDF versions of the 

Transmittal Letter must be included in the Technical proposal.”

1) Please confirm that the original, signed Transmittal Letter is to be excluded from any original 

hard copies that may be required and replaced with a PDF version only.

2) Is this the same procedure for the other required forms outlined in Section 6.2.2 Required 

Forms (Section B) on page 61?

Question for Procurement Procurement indicated bidders should submit one 

original copy that contains all required signatures. 

How is transmittal letter to be submitted. It is not 

clear. In Appendix B. Section 6.2.1 it states   

original of the Transmittal Letter shall be 

submitted in a separate, sealed envelope inside 

the package containing proposal disks. PDF 

versions of the Transmittal Letter must be 

included in the Technical proposal. Please 

confirm with procurement if this is how original 

transmittal should be treated. 

37 Exhibits E.3 85 The State of Delaware shall bear no responsibility or increase obligation for a 

Bidder’s failure to accurately estimate the costs or resources required to meet 

the obligations defined in the Operational costs may be categorized separately 

(i.e. Hosting, Tier 2 Support, Maintenance (up to n hours), etc.) or Contractor 

may choose to bid a single all-inclusive total operational cost per year.”

Was this intended to read as follows:  

The State of Delaware shall bear no responsibility or increase obligation for a Bidder’s failure to 

accurately estimate the costs or resources required to meet the obligations defined in the RFP.

Operational costs may be categorized separately (i.e. Hosting, Tier 2 Support, Maintenance (up to 

n hours), etc.) or Contractor may choose to bid a single all-inclusive total operational cost per 

year.

Correct. DMMA will update Appendix B. E. 3. 

38 4 4.11.2.4 49 While final guidance around certification of EVV systems by CMS has yet to be 

issued ultimately the State believes the Contractor’s EVV System must be CMS 

certified. As such, the Contractor shall work with DHSS and with the 

Independent Verification and Validation (IV & V) Contractor to achieve this 

certification.

With formal DHSS approval of all deliverables in this phase, the milestone 

payment (M4) minus 20% holdback may be invoiced.”

1) Please confirm that DHSS has concluded CMS Certification R1 requirements.  

2) Please clarify if CMS has specified if a Full or Experimental CMS Certification will be used for 

the DHSS EVV program

We anticipate that R1 will be completed in July 2019.  The State expects that a FULL MECL-based 

certification will be required.  

39 4 4.11.2.4 49 While final guidance around certification of EVV systems by CMS has yet to be 

issued ultimately the State believes the Contractor’s EVV System must be CMS 

certified. As such, the Contractor shall work with DHSS and with the 

Independent Verification and Validation (IV & V) Contractor to achieve this 

certification.

With formal DHSS approval of all deliverables in this phase, the milestone 

payment (M4) minus 20% holdback may be invoiced.”

Please provide the IV&V vendor that DHSS will use for EVV CMS Certification. The State is in the process of acquiring the IV&V vendor for the project. 

40 6 6.2.2 61 “Exhibit J:  This form must be completed and signed by prospective Contractors 

prior to proposal submission.  Please bring the completed form to the mandatory 

pre-bid meeting.”

The RFP does not have a pre-bid meeting – therefore should this form just be submitted with the 

bid?

Yes, Exhibit J should be submitted with the vendor's proposal

https://dhss.delaware.gov/dhss/dmma/info_stats.html
https://dhss.delaware.gov/dhss/dmma/info_stats.html
https://dhss.delaware.gov/dhss/dmma/info_stats.html
https://dhss.delaware.gov/dhss/dmma/info_stats.html
https://dhss.delaware.gov/dhss/dmma/info_stats.html


41 4 and Exhibit 

M  

4.10 # 26 and 

#27

121,122     

and 39 

Exhibit M, #26 states: 

“Damages  $100 a day for each day after 48 hours that devices are not delivered 

and installed.”

4.10 paragraph 2 states: “The Contractor must repair or replace EVV devices, as 

necessary, within 24 hours of receiving notification of lost or stolen equipment, or 

the need for device repair or replacement.”

The 48 hour device replacement timeline in Exhibit M #26 conflicts with section 

4.10 24 hour device replacement requirements.

Exhibit M, #26 states: 

“Damages  $100 a day for each day after 48 hours that devices are not delivered and installed.”

4.10 paragraph 2 states: “The Contractor must repair or replace EVV devices, as necessary, 

within 24 hours of receiving notification of lost or stolen equipment, or the need for device repair 

or replacement.”

The 48 hour device replacement timeline in Exhibit M #26 conflicts with section 4.10 24 hour 

device replacement requirements.  

Please clarify what the requirement is for replacement devices - is it 24 hours or 48 hours?

#26 refers to the timeframe required for the installation of devices post implementation for members newly 

receiving services that require EVV. This is different than the repair or replacement of an existing device. #27 

Device Repair and Replacement describes the requirement for the repair and replacement of existing 

devices. You are correct this standard is inconsistent with the narrative in Section 4.10. The standard is 48 

hours. Appendix B Section 4.10 will be updated to reflects 48 hour standard. 

42 4 4.4.8 23 DHSS will permit project work to be done offsite, within the United States and its 

territories and Canada. For offsite work, DHSS requires strong management of 

the resources and assigned tasks; adequate, timely and accurate 

communications and completion of assigned work by specified deadlines. This is 

important to any offsite relationship. If Contractor is proposing offsite project 

work, Contractor must specifically address each of the bulleted items below in 

this section of the proposal. Otherwise, Contractor will respond to this section as 

follows: “No offsite project work proposed.”

Please define what is meant by “offsite project work”. Offsite refers to work performed remotely. The same RFP requirements apply to any subcontractors used.

43 Exhibit M 18 and 19 119 #18 SSAE Complete and Deliver Audit Report, Annually

The Contractor must complete and deliver a report on Controls Placed in 

Operation and Tests of Operating Effectiveness audit performed under 

Statement on Standards for Attestation Engagements (SSAE) No. 16, and 

International Standards on Assurance Engagements Report on Controls at a 

Service Organization (ISAE) 3402 Reporting on Controls at a Service 

Organization to DHSS by September 30 of each year. DHSS will specify the 

control objectives. Reporting is to begin upon Solution implementation.”

#19 Proposed Corrective Action Plan to SSAE Audit, Annually

“The Contractor must respond with a proposed corrective action plan to the 

SSAE audits within 30 calendar days of receiving the audit report, if necessary. 

The Contractor must complete implementation of the State-approved corrective 

action plan within 40 calendar days of approval unless otherwise specified by 

the state. DHSS must approve the coverage period and auditor selected for the 

audit.

Is a HITRUST Audit Report, which is typically done bi-annually, an acceptable replacement for the 

above requirements?

A HITRUST Audit does not take the place of the requirements.  The listed audits must be completed.  

44 Exhibit M 25 121 The Contractor shall install and/or deliver devices for all impacted members no 

later than thirty days prior to the date of the EVV System implementation.“

Can the vendor propose alternate installation timelines based on EVV device program 

experience?  We have found it more effective to deliver much closer to the actual device usage 

date to be best.  

DMMA would like to hear vendors proposals for installation timelins and device usage.

45 4. of Appendix 

B. and V.8 of 

Professional 

Services RFP

4.4.1 17;26 Section 8.x. of the RFP requires that Vendor (and any subcontractor) has 

conducted a background check that includes clearance through the DE sex 

offender registry; while Section 4.4.1 of Appendix B requires that “all Contractor 

staff working on this project will be subject to a Criminal Background Check 

(CBC). . . . . See Exhibit K for instructions on this process.” 

1) Does Appendix B Section 4.4.1 supplement Section 8.x so that a Contractor must comply with 

both sections? 

2) Does the background check requirements only apply to contractor staff (project manager, 

business analysts) working at the Biggs Data Center? 

1. Yes, Venors must comply with both sections.  2.  No, Background checks are required for anyone who 

has access to the Data in any form.

46 4 4.4.1 17 Contractor staff will be required to fill out DTI’s Acceptable Use Policy, Biggs 

Data Center User Authorization Form, and the Biggs Data Center Non-

Disclosure Agreement for necessary authorizations before starting work under 

the contract.

Do these forms only need to be filled out by contractor staff (project manager, business analyst) 

working at the Biggs Data Center?

Anyone with access to state data systems will need to complete DTI’s Acceptable Use Policy, Biggs Data 

Center User Authorization Form, and the Biggs Data Center Non-Disclosure Agreement, regardless of their 

work location.

47 4 4. 10 32  The Contractor shall ensure that the data collection method used in the 

member’s home or in the community is consistent with the member’s or 

authorized representative’s choice. Members and/or their authorized 

representative will be able to choose the data collection modality that best fits 

their lifestyle and the way in which they manage their care.  

Per the RFP requirements, members are allowed to determine their visit verification methodology, 

including whether they would like a device.  

1) Please provide the number of devices that the vendor should plan to purchase for the DHSS 

EVV program.  

2) Please clarify where the vendor should include device fees in the pricing spreadsheet. 

3) Can the vendor propose a per device fee? 

DMMA would like to hear vendors proposals for the data collection model and number of devices that will be 

used. Cost of devices should be included in the cost proposal and should be identified separately. DMMA 

does not prescribe how device costs should be specified in the proposal (e.g., per-device, etc.).

48 2 2.2.2 6 As of August 2018, over 236,000 members were enrolled in Delaware’s Medicaid 

program.

Approximately what percentage of Delaware’s Medicaid program members receive services that 

will be covered under the EVV program?

As of State Fiscal Year 2018 approximatley 3% of Medicaid program members  receive services subject to 

EVV.  Additional relevant EVV data can be found on the DMMA website at:                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    

https://dhss.delaware.gov/dhss/dmma/info_stats.html
49 2 2.2.2 8 Self-directed attendant care is offered through DSHP-Plus, respite and personal 

care may be self-directed in the Lifespan waiver and members participating in 

Pathways may self-direct their personal care services.

Approximately what percentage of Delaware’s Medicaid program members who will be receiving 

services that will be covered under the EVV program self-direct their care?

Relevant EVV data can be found on the DMMA website at:                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     

https://dhss.delaware.gov/dhss/dmma/info_stats.html.  Data on self-directed members is included but 

information on self-directed members and providers cannot be discretely identified. 
50 4 4. 10 37 The Contractor shall purchase and maintain and must be considered the owner 

of all equipment needed for the EVV System during the installation, 

customization (as applicable), implementation, and ongoing operations.

1.  Contractor owns device, does this exclude individual liability support of the end user?   2. Are 

you willing to consider the Bring Your Own Device (BYOD) model

The expectation is that, if the vendor is providing the device, the vendor then owns the device and is 

responsible for maintenance and replacement.  Costs of repairs and replacements should be incorporated in 

a bidder's proposal. The "bring your own device" model might not be appropriate for all providers and 

members. DMMA is not prescribing the type or model of devices to be used. DMMA welcomes proposals 

from bidders that could include an array of options that meet the requirements of the RFP. This could 

include a "bring your own device" model. DMMA expects a comprehensive approach that takes into 

consideration the data collection needs and preferences of members.

51 4 4. 10 37 The Contractor shall provide a data collection device (device) used to securely 

collect an independent verification of each service subject to EVV. The device 

provided must be based on member or authorized representative preference for 

each member receiving services subject to EVV consistent with the availability of 

broadband connectivity in the area where the member resides. The device may 

be in the control of the member or authorized representative or provider 

depending on the member or authorized representative preference and the type 

of device selected. The device must be intuitive and easily used by members 

who range in their familiarity with smart phones, tablets and other mobile 

devices, or other technologies including members, family, authorized 

representative or provider with no familiarity.

Do you prefer recommendation of a single device or a suite of devices? DMMA is not prescribing the type or model of devices to be used. DMMA welcomes proposals from bidders 

that could include an array of options that meet the requirements of the RFP. DMMA expects a 

comprehensive approach that takes into consideration the data collection needs and preferences of 

members.

52 4 4. 10 38-39 The Contractor shall install and/or deliver devices for all impacted members no 

later than thirty days prior to the date of the EVV System implementation. 

Thereafter, for members newly receiving services that require EVV, the 

Contractor shall install and/or deliver the device within 48 hours of notification by 

service provider agency.

Can providers be engaged to deliver devices to members on behalf of the Contractor? DMMA welcomes proposals from bidders regarding delivery of devices to members. It is the vendor's 

responsibility to ensure that procedures regarding devices meet the requirements of the RFP.

53 4 4. 10 39 The Contractor is responsible for maintaining EVV devices in good working order 

and for standard maintenance, software/firmware/version updates, device 

upgrades, repairs and replacements. The Contractor must repair or replace EVV 

devices, as necessary, within 24 hours of receiving notification of lost or stolen 

equipment, or the need for device repair or replacement.

Are there any stipulations related to members who need repairs and/or replacements on a 

frequent basis compared to the average population?

DMMA welcomes proposals from bidders regarding management of replacements. Vendors are required to 

replace devices as needed. 

54 Appendix B, 

Exhibit J

1 100 The following information must be filled out and brought to the mandatory pre-

bid meeting.

Document HSS_19041Evvsystem_rfp states a mandatory pre-bid meeting has not been 

established for this RFP, is that correct?

There is no pre-bid meeting for this RFP. 

55 2 2.2 6 15% receive their services through the State’s Medicaid fee-for-service program. 15% receive their services through the State’s Medicaid fee-for-service program. 

Are these FFS the same as the self-directed community?

No. Self-direction is available to DSHP Plus members.

56 2 2.2 6 15% receive their services through the State’s Medicaid fee-for-service program. Where do the authorizations originate in the Fee-for-Service program? FFS authorizations originate with DMMA. 



57 4 4.4.5.3 22 All DHSS data (Public and Non-Public) related to services provided under this 

contract will remain the sole property of DHSS. De-identified or 

derived/aggregated DHSS data is not exempted from this requirement. This 

provision shall survive the life of the contract. 

All DHSS data (Public and Non-Public) related to services provided under this contract will remain 

the sole property of DHSS. De-identified or derived/aggregated DHSS data is not exempted from 

this requirement. This provision shall survive the life of the contract. 

How long do you need this data retained? Can it be archived during this retention period?

Data archiving is not within the scope of this RFP.

58 4 4.5.1 28 Ability to interface with providers’ existing payroll systems for the purpose of 

sharing validated visit data in order to populate DCWs’ timesheets for payroll 

purposes. 

Who is your payroll vendor? What is the name of their payroll application? Does this application 

have import/export capabilities? Is this real-time, or batch?

DMMA is unaware of the specifics regarding providers' payroll systems.

59 4 4.5.1 28 The Contractor’s EVV System must collect visit data elements when the DCW 

initiates the visit, including when there is a visit for a service for which there is no 

authorization. 

When a visit has no authorization, how does the caregiver know how long to stay and what is the 

Plan-of-Care? Is this visit flagged as an exception

No service can be provided without an authorization. 

60 4 4.1 34 This could include use of a fixed device with a paper timesheet under limited 

circumstances as prescribed by State guidelines, policies and manuals, 

including any additions or updates thereto.  

What percentage of recipients do you estimate will require FOBs in conjunction with paper time-

sheets?

DMMA does not have data in response to this question.

61 4 and Exhibit 

4

4.10; E5. 37; 89 The Contractor shall provide a data collection device (device) used to securely 

collect an independent verification of each service subject to EVV;   “E5. DHSS 

Purchased Hardware Schedule” - This is a hardware summary schedule with a 

total estimated cost. Only new hardware or upgrades to existing hardware being 

proposed for this project should be listed here. This list of hardware will be 

evaluated by DHSS technical staff for compliance with DHSS standards. DHSS 

will purchase the hardware from a third party, not the Contractor. 

Please confirm that bidders are to provide specifications for all equipment, including mobile 

devices, and that the state will purchase the hardware. Also please confirm that the cost of the 

devices will not be part of a bidder’s evaluated price. 

DMMA welcomes proposals from bidders that could include an array of options that meet the requirements 

of the RFP. this could include a "bring your own device" model. DMMA expects a comprehensive approach 

that takes into consideration the data collection needs and preferences of all providers and members. The 

cost of devices should be included in the cost proposal and should be identified separately. 

62 4 4. 10 42 The Contractor’s EVV System must include a data aggregation module to collect 

and process data from the Contractor’s EVV data collection module as well as 

approved alternate data collection systems that DMMA providers may be 

currently using, in near real time (within 3 seconds 99% of the time) in 

accordance with the technical requirements 

The Contractor’s EVV System must include a data aggregation module to collect and process 

data from the Contractor’s EVV data collection module as well as approved alternate data 

collection systems that DMMA providers may be currently using, in near real time (within 3 

seconds 99% of the time) in accordance with the technical requirements 

Do all 3rd party EVV vendors have a real-time capability to send/receive information?  If so, what 

is the recommend data transport method and record format?

DMMA does not have this information.

63 4 4.1 43 The data aggregation component must also communicate with specified case 

management systems operated by State contracted health plans. 

What are these case managements systems, how many are there, and what is their data 

exchange methodology?

Each MCO has a case management system. DMMA does not have information on their data exchange 

methodology.

64 4 4.1 43 The Contractor will be held accountable for and must reimburse DHSS for any 

claims paid as a result of any error on the Contractor’s part, which exceed or do 

not comport with the service limitations or prior authorized amount. What is the definition of an “error”?

In this circumstance error means any misinformation in the Contractor's system regarding the amount and 

duration of authorized services that results in the erroneous payment of a claim. 

65 4 4.11.2.3 49 The Contractor shall provide comprehensive EVV System training to users at 

least 90 days prior to EVV System implementation. The Contractor shall also 

provide the training for users added after the EVV System has been 

implemented and 90 days prior to major System updates during the course of 

the Contract term.  

The Contractor shall provide comprehensive EVV System training to users at least 90 days prior 

to EVV System implementation. The Contractor shall also provide the training for users added 

after the EVV System has been implemented and 90 days prior to major System updates during 

the course of the Contract term.  

How often do you want these supplemental training sessions? Quarterly, semi-annually, 

annually? What type of training does the state envision for the recipient/designee community? 

The Contractor shall offer training as needed to ensure users are able to use the system. The Contractor 

shall offer and provide user training through a variety of mediums, including, but not limited to, in-person, on-

line, guided webinar and recorded webinar. For in-person training, the Contractor must provide training in 

locations throughout the state. 

66 2 2.2 6 As of August 2018, over 236,000 members were enrolled in Delaware’s Medicaid 

program

What is the current number of monthly transactions managed by the program? What is the 

projected annual transaction count for the contract period? Also, please provide the following: 

Total number of Provider Agencies; Total EVV Members; Average Visits per member per month (if 

available)

There are approximately 191,665 total claims submitted for Fiscal Year 2018 that are subject to EVV.  There 

are approximately 31 Provider types for a total of 274 providers for Fiscal Year 2018;  For Fiscal Year 2018 

approximately 6,505 members receiving services subject to  EVV;  The Service Count for Fiscal year 2018 

was 4,744,835.  Additional EVV Data can be found on the DMMA website at 

https://dhss.delaware.gov/dhss/dmma/info_stats.html

67 4 4.6 29 The Contractor shall ensure access for the required number of concurrent users, 

according to the State specifications, necessary for the administration of the 

State’s business functions without limitation of user access and compliance with 

performance standards. 

Can the State clarify its expectations in terms of the expected number of concurrent users? EVV data can be found on the DMMA website at: https://dhss.delaware.gov/dhss/dmma/info_stats.html  

Diamond State Health Plan  member count 2,270; Diamond State Health Plan Plus member count is 4,220.  

Fee for Service member count is 270.  Members can receive services on a fee for service basis prior to 

enrollment in a managed care organization.  The Aggregate Total member count is 6,424.  Additionally, 

members can transition from the DSHP program to the DSHP Plus program.  The aggregate total identifies 

the unique member count that received servicse.  

68 4 4.1 36 The Contractor’s EVV System must allow for the uploading of paper timesheets 

and other documents and must accept all recognized electronic document 

formats. 

Can the State list the required recognized electronic formats? The recognized electronic formats are PDF and MS Word.

69 I. 2 1 Deadline for Receipt of Proposals - July 10, 2019 at 11AM EST. Would the state consider a two week extension? The deadline for bidders to submit their RFP proposals has been extended from July 10, 2019 to July 24, 

2019.

70 I. 3 2 Mandatory Pre Bid meeting – A mandatory pre-bid meeting has not been 

established for this Request for Proposal. 

Will a mandatory pre-bid meeting be scheduled?  There is no pre-bid meeting for this RFP. 

71 B #2 and #11 5, 7 and 8 Page 5 instructs "corporate confidential information" while page 8 instructs 

"confidential business information".

Please confirm the correct title for the confidential information volume as there are conflicting 

instruction

Please label confidential sections of the proposal as " Confidential Business Information".  DMMA will revise 

the language in the RFP.

72 Appendix A,          

Attachment 

10

3 45 Eight (8) electronic copies of the vendor proposal saved to CD or DVD media 

disk.  Two (2) original copies and six (6) copies (each labeled as “copy”).  A copy 

of electronic price file shall be a separate file from all other files on the electronic 

copy. 

Please confirm the correct labeling for the Confidential Information CD’s. 

Are all 3 CD’s to be considered “Copies?”

For CD's or DVD's any required confidential financial or audit information relating to the company and not 

specifically to the proposal may be copied separately to one set of up to three (3) disks (Each labeled 

“Confidential Business Information”).

For additional information see Section IV, B. 2 of the Professional Services RFP. Eight (8) electronic copies 

of the bidders proposal on CD or DVD media disk are required. Two (2) original copies and six (6) copies 

(each labeled as “copy”).  A copy of electronic price file shall be a separate file from all other files on the 

electronic copy. Each disk will contain the following files at a minimum:                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        

Disk Directory.doc (Microsoft Word 2000 or higher)                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

RFP Technical Proposal.doc                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          

RFP Business Proposal.doc                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        

RFP Technical Proposal.pdf                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             

For additional details regarding CD submission see Section 6.1 of Appendix B.

73 4 4.1.4 14 Contractor Help Desk expertise is critical to the success of the System. What languages are required to be supported in the Landline Interactive Voice System and Help 

Desk functions?

English and Spanish are required to be supported in the Landline Interactive Voice System and Help Desk 

functions.

74 PSA Section 3 PSA Section 

3.1

3 Vendor shall be responsible for ensuring that all services, products and 

deliverables furnished pursuant to this Agreement  comply with the standards 

promulgated by the Department of Technology and Information ("DTI") 

published at http://dti.delaware.gov/, and as modified from time to time by DTI 

during the term of this Agreement.

.

In the event that the standards promulgated by DTI are changed after the effective date of this 

Agreement and such changes result in changes to the technical requirements set forth in this 

Agreement or the RFP, could Delaware please confirm that Vendor will be compensated for the 

necessary changes to the solution through the Change Order process set forth in Section 1.3 of 

the Professional Services Agreement? 

Bidders should address exceptions to the RFP in the appropriate form. .

75 PSA Section 

10

PSA Section 

10.3

8 Possession of a Security Clearance, as issued by the Delaware Department Safety and Homeland Security, may be required of any employee of Vendor who will be assigned to this project.Possession of a Security Clearance, as issued by the Delaware Department Safety and Homeland 

Security, may be required of any employee of Vendor who will be assigned to this project.

Could Delaware please confirm this provision is not applicable to this procurement?  If it is, what 

is the process for determining which employees may or may not be required to obtain or possess 

such a clearance?  

Background checks are required for anyone who has access to the data in any form.  The established 

security process must be followed as outlined in RFP, please see Exhibit K "Criminal Background Check 

Instructions".

76 V. 2 24 Any disputes, claims or controversies arising out of or relating to this Agreement 

shall be submitted to mediation by a mediator selected by Agency, and if the 

matter is not resolved through mediation, then it shall be submitted, in the sole 

discretion of the Agency Director, for final and binding arbitration.

Would Delaware please consider alternatives to binding arbitration? Question for Procurement 

77 Section 6 and 

RFP Exhibit A

 Sections 6.1, 

6.2, 6.3, 6.4 

and RFP 

Exhibit A, 

Paragraph 3

PSA page 6 

of 17 and 

RFP 

Appendix B 

page 73 (75 

of 125)

Ownership and license rights set forth in Sections 6.1, 6.2 and 6.3 of the 

Professional Services Agreement and Section 3 (Ownership Rights)

To the extent any customizations of COTS or SaaS solutions are necessary to meet the 

requirements of the RFP, could Delaware please confirm that the ownership and license rights 

set forth in Sections 6.1, 6.2 and 6.3 of the Professional Services Agreement and Section 3 

(Ownership Rights) of the General Terms and Conditions would NOT apply to such 

customizations and the customizations would be treated as Preexisting Information, as defined in 

Section 6.4 of the Professional Services Agreement?  

Modifications to IP rights  language may be discussed during contract negotiations with the selected vendor.

78  6 and RFP 

Exhibit A

6.1, 6.2, 6.3, 

6.4 and RFP 

Exhibit A, 

Paragraph 3

 6 of 17 and 

RFP 

Appendix B 

page 73 

The State will retain ownership rights to all materials including software, designs, 

drawings, specifications, notes, electronically or magnetically recorded material, 

and other work in whatever form, developed during the performance of this 

contract.  A fundamental obligation herein imposed on the Contractor is the 

assignment by the Contractor to DHSS of all ownership rights in the completed 

project. This obligation on the part of the Contractor to assign all ownership 

rights is not subject to limitation in any respect, whether by characterization of 

any part of the deliverables as proprietary or by failure to claim for the cost 

thereof. The provisions of this article shall be incorporated into any subcontract

Could Delaware please confirm that the restrictions on State ownership and license rights 

applicable to Preexisting Information in Section 6.4 of the Professional Services Agreement also 

apply to the section on Ownership Rights in the General Terms and Conditions

Modifications to IP rights  language may be discussed during contract negotiations with the selected vendor.



79 General N/A N/A I have reviewed the following page, https://dhss.delaware.gov/dmma/files/publicmeeting.pdf,  and 

have not found any billing specifications and claim reporting requirements for these services.  

Can you please provide the location for this information? Or confirm that there will not be any 

billing changes? 

The Delaware Medicaid Provider Portal  can be found at the following link and includes billing information.  

https://medicaid.dhss.delaware.gov/provider/Home/tabid/135/Default.aspx

80 6.2 6.2.7 64 Experience of proposed subcontractors shall be presented separately. In order to expand the numbers of bidders who are qualified to participate in this procurement, 

and provide the State with unique and innovative solutions, will the State allow the experience of 

the prime and subcontractor to be considered together in order to meet the experience 

requirements?

The subcontractors that the bidder hires are acting on behalf of the bidder for the project and are 

considered by the State to be providing services as the bidder.  The prime bidder should present their 

combined abilities to meet the experience requirements of the RFP.

81 VI. 2 33 The State of Delaware requires that all hardware, system software products, and 

application software products included in proposals be currently in use in a 

production environment by a least three other customers, have been in use for at 

least six months, and have been generally available from the manufacturers for 

a period of six months. Unreleased or beta test hardware, system software, or 

application software will not be acceptable.

This requirement is very restrictive and limits the number of bidders to a small number of legacy 

solution providers. Preventing new solution providers from bidding this RFP, limits the State from 

taking advantage of newer, innovative, and more cost-effective solutions than those that have 

been in the market for several years. In order to expand competition, and expose the State to 

innovative solutions, we respectfully request that the State remove these restrictive experience 

requirements. 

The RFP language will be changed, and DMMA will replace the word " requires" with the word "prefers".

82 4 4. 10 37 The Contractor shall provide a data collection device (device) used to securely 

collect an independent verification of each service subject to EVV. The device 

provided must be based on member or authorized representative preference for 

each member receiving services subject to EVV consistent with the availability of 

broadband connectivity in the area where the member resides. The device may 

be in the control of the member or authorized representative or provider 

depending on the member or authorized representative preference and the type 

of device selected. The device must be intuitive and easily used by members 

who range in their familiarity with smart phones, tablets and other mobile 

devices, or other technologies including members, family, authorized 

representative or provider with no familiarity.

Mandating a data collection device as part of the contract is a legacy-provider approach to 

delivering EVV services and limits the flexibility of the State for using more modern BYOD (Bring 

Your Own Device) solutions. This approach is also significantly more cost effective than the State 

covering the costs for all devices through the Contractor. We respectfully request that the State 

modify the RFP to make supplying the EVV devices optional, and allowing a BYOD solution as a 

viable alternative.

The "bring your own device" model might not be appropriate for all providers and members. DMMA is not 

prescribing the type or model of devices to be used. DMMA welcomes proposals from bidders that could 

include an array of options that meet the requirements of the RFP. This could include a "bring your own 

device" model. DMMA expects a comprehensive approach that takes into consideration the data collection 

needs and preferences of all providers and members. 


